
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS, PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING. 

 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2023, 7:00 PM 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 
 
III.  PUBLIC HEARING(S): (Notice requirements met, hearing may commence unless otherwise noted) 

 
1. V202311 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, to appeal a decision from the Zoning 

Enforcement Officer dated October 10, 2023, of Section 3.2.2-Lot Requirements and 
Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot Requirements of the Ellington Zoning Regulations, and to 
request a variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot 
Requirements: to allow access over an easement for two proposed rear lots on property 
located south of Hawks Nest Trail known as APN 004-002-0000 in a Rural Agricultural 
Residential (RAR) zone. 

 
III. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of the October 2, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Approval of the 2024 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Schedule 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 
4. Commissioner training pursuant to Public Act 21-29. 

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT:   
 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Instructions to attend remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington 
webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Join Zoom Meeting via link:                Join Zoom Meeting by phone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81657258655  1 646 558 8656 US (New York)  
Meeting ID: 816 5725 8655    Meeting ID: 816 5725 8655 
Passcode: 259193     Passcode: 259193 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE    FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81657258655
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


 
 

Town of Ellington      
Planning Department 
55 Main Street, PO Box 187, Ellington, CT 06029/Phone: 860-870-3120/Email: jcolonese@ellington-ct.gov 

 

Date: November 28, 2023 

To: Zoning Board of Appeals 

From: John D. Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/ZEO 

Re:  V202311 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, to appeal a decision of the Zoning Enforcement 
Officer dated October 10, 2023, Section 3.2.2-Lot Requirements and Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot 
Requirements of the Ellington Zoning Regulations on property located south of Hawks Nest Trail 
known as APN 004-002-0000. 

 
 
In accordance with Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 8-7, I am transmitting all the papers constituting the record 
upon which the appeal was taken, as follows:  
 

• Letter to Stephen D. Williams dated October 10, 2023. 
• Excerpts of Ellington Zoning Regulations referenced in the October 10, 2023, letter. 
• Lot Split Perimeter Boundary Survey by Russell H. Heintz, L.S. dated September 12, 2023.  
• Letter from Attorney Edward Muska dated February 8, 2023. 

 
Also, please find enclosed my response to the appeal of my decision.  
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
 

 





ARTICLE 2 GENERAL REGULATIONS

Page 2-5 of 103

Section 2.2 Non-Conforming Uses of Land & Structures

2.2.1 Continuance of Non-Conforming Structures or Uses
Any lawful building or the lawful use of any buildings or premises or any part thereof existing at the time 
of the effective date of these regulations or any amendments thereto, or where a zoning permit is 
outstanding on the effective date of these regulations authorizing specific construction or use, which does 
not conform to these regulations, shall be considered nonconforming and as such may be continued, 
subject to the provisions of this Section.

2.2.2 Replacement of Non-Conforming Buildings or Structures
Any existing nonconforming building may be restored if damaged by fire, flood, storm, accident or Act of 
God, provided such restoration is undertaken within one year of time of damage and actively pursued. No 
nonconforming structure or nonconforming portion of a structure shall be enlarged to a greater size than at 
the time of destruction.

2.2.3 Change of Non-Conforming Use
A nonconforming use may be changed to another nonconforming use substantially the same in character, 
or to any use permitted in these regulations in any zone in which it is located.

2.2.4 Abandonment of Non-Conforming Use
Any existing nonconforming use shall cease if such nonconforming use is discontinued with the intent of
abandonment for a period of one year by reason of the fault and neglect of the owner of the premises.  
Where said property is part of a decedent's estate, the preceding one year time limit may be extended for 
good cause shown for a time equal to the elapsed time from death of the decedent to distribution of the 
estate assets, but in no case shall the total time of non-use exceed two years.

2.2.5 Non-Conforming Lot of Record
The erection of a dwelling shall be permitted on a nonconforming lot of record in the office of the 
Assessors or the Town Clerk prior to the effective date of these regulations provided that the owner of any 
such lot did not own adjoining land on the effective date of these regulations, or has not acquired any 
adjoining land since the effective date of these regulations to enable such owner to conform with these 
regulations, or to conform therewith to a greater degree. All nonconforming lots shall conform to the yard 
requirements of the zone in which the lot is located.

2.2.6 Completion of Existing Buildings
Nothing herein contained shall require any change in the location, construction or designated use of a 
building for which a permit has been granted, construction of which has been started at the time of the
effective date of these regulations.

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight



ARTICLE 3 RESIDENTIAL ZONES

Page 3-5 of 103

3.2.2 Lot Requirements 
 

Residential
Rural 

Agricultural / 
Residential

Lake 
Residential

1. Minimum Lot Size – Single-family (square 
feet) (1)

40,000 40,000 25,000
with public water 
and public sewer, 

40,000
Otherwise

2. Minimum Lot Size – Two-family (square 
feet) 60,000 n/a n/a

3. Minimum Lot Width (feet) (1) 100

125 with Septic / 
100 with 

Community 
Septic

100

 

(1) Under the density limitation formula only and provided that soil suitability is sufficient enough to allow a 
reduction in lot size for an onsite sanitary system or has access to public sewers, the following shall 
apply:

a. Lot size may be reduced but not less than 32,000 square feet.

b. Lot frontage may be reduced but not less than 75 lineal feet measured at the front property line.

In addition to the above requirements, each lot in an area not serviced by public servers shall contain land 
suitable for the structure and for an individual septic system (if not a community septic system)
compliant with the current State of Connecticut Public Health Code and the current technical standards 
for subsurface sewage disposal systems.  Depending upon individual lot soil conditions, lot sizes may 
need to be increased above the minimum specified in order to comply with the same.  In areas with soil 
conditions rated as “excellent” in accordance with the Tolland County Soil Survey (NRCS, as amended) 
for septic systems, consideration of community septic systems is highly encouraged.

3.2.3 Minimum Yard Setbacks
 

Residential
Rural 

Agricultural / 
Residential

Lake
Residential

1. Front Yard (feet) (1) 35 35 35

2. Side Yard (feet) (1) 10 10 10

3. Rear Yard – Principal Building (feet) 25 25 10

4. Rear Yard – Accessory Building (feet) 10 10 10
 

(1) Where an existing building legally exists within the front or side yard setbacks either by way of variance or as an 
existing nonconforming building, any addition or accessory structure to the rear of the principal building that will not 
encroach within the front or side yard setback requirement any closer to the property line than the existing principal 
building may be permitted by way of a zoning permit. (Added 8-23-10, Effective 9-7-10)

 
 

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight



ARTICLE 7 SPECIAL REGULATIONS

Page 7-8 of 103

A. Retain in fee simple ownership by the applicant/landowner with an agricultural or similar type of 
easement in favor of the town, state, land trust, homeowner’s association or combination thereof.

B. Fee simple purchase by the town (as an increase to the open space or other municipal purpose), state, 
land trust, homeowner’s association or combination thereof.

C. Some combination of the above as acceptable to all parties.

Section 7.9 Rear Lot Requirement (Amended 1/29/18, Effective 2/15/18)

A. All rear lots require a special permit from the Planning and Zoning Commission, unless a lot is a 
lawful lot of record as recorded in the office of the Town Clerk prior to February 1, 2016, or a lot 
subject to permanent easement for farmland preservation.

B. The provisions of this Section are intended to permit the use of land which has been unintentionally 
landlocked or deprived of minimum frontage on a street, or, in the case of a subdivision, where the 
topography or unusual shape of the property lends itself to the use of an interior lot to accomplish the 
best use of the land.  In the case of a subdivision, the Commission shall not approve interior lots 
unless it finds that such lots provide the best development of the land because of the topography and 
shape of the land. No more than 20% of all lots contained within a subdivision shall be approved as 
rear lots.  This requirement shall apply when a tract of land is divided into a total of six or more lots 
subsequent to the adoption of this amendment.

C. There shall be provided a minimum 25 foot wide fee simple access fronting on a town accepted road 
(or a road which will be built and accepted by the town as a result of the lot in question being part of 
subdivision application), or state highway, or private street used for travel and approved by the 
Commission as part of a subdivision approved after July 1999.  The lot line from which this access 
leads shall be considered the front lot line of the rear lot, and the driveway serving the lot shall be 
located within the fee simple accessway. The front yard setback shall be measured from the lot line
which intersects the accessway and shall extend the full width of the lot. If the lot will contain 
enough area such that it may, in the future, be further divided into additional building lots, the fee 
simple access strip shall be a minimum of 50 feet wide. The minimum width shall be met the entire 
length of the accessway.

D. The minimum lot area shall be 2x the minimum lot size required for the zone in which it is located.  
In cases where required lot size is reduced because of the use of sewers, the required lot size shall be 
2x the reduced lot size. 

E. Said rear lot shall conform to all other applicable regulations prescribed for the zone in which it is 
located.

F. The owner of the rear lot shall provide and maintain the driveway and storm drainage in the access
area.  Said driveway is to be fully capable of providing unrestricted access at any time for emergency 
vehicles such are fire trucks, etc.

Section 7.10 Sanitary Refuse Disposal Area 
A. A Special Permit for a Sanitary Refuse Disposal Area in an I-Industrial Zone shall be given only after 

a public hearing in which the following minimum requirements are established:  

1. That the site is well suited to this purpose, 

2. That such operation will not unreasonably effect the use and enjoyment of other land in the 
general area, 

3. That it will create no health or safety hazard in the community, and 

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight

jcolonese
Highlight















 
 

Town of Ellington      
Planning Department 
55 Main Street, PO Box 187, Ellington, CT 06029/Phone: 860-870-3120/Email: jcolonese@ellington-ct.gov 

 

Date: November 28, 2023 

To: Zoning Board of Appeals 

From: John D. Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/ZEO 

Re:  V202311 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, to appeal a decision of the Zoning Enforcement 
Officer dated October 10, 2023, Section 3.2.2-Lot Requirements and Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot 
Requirements of the Ellington Zoning Regulations on property located south of Hawks Nest Trail 
known as APN 004-002-0000. 

 
 
This memorandum is in response to the appeal of my decision received October 31, 2023 (hereinafter 
“Appeal”).  The Appeal begins near the bottom of Page 1 by stating a ruling was requested from the ZEO 
“…to confirm that the owner/applicant was entitled to divide the property into two parcels without 
subdivision approval…”. My October 10, 2023, letter does not dispute the property owner’s entitlement 
to divide the property into two parcels without subdivision approval based on the letter from Attorney 
Edward Muska dated February 8, 2023.  
 
I dispute the later part of the sentence which states, “…that each parcel would be eligible for building 
permits as a pre-existing lot of record with ingress, egress and utilities to be provided to the site within 
the existing permanent easement and right of way running from Hawk’s Nest Trail to the subject 
property.” As outlined in my letter dated October 10, 2023, the proposed two lots as shown on the Lot 
Split Perimeter Boundary Survey by Russell H. Heintz, L.S. dated 9-12-23 (hereinafter “Lot Split Survey”) 
do not comply with Section 3.2.2(3)-Lot Requirements and Section 7.9(A&C)-Rear Lot Requirements of 
the Ellington Zoning Regulations. After the parcels are divided into two lots, they are no longer a pre-
existing lot of record, and the erection of a dwelling cannot be permitted pursuant to Section 2.2.5-Non-
conforming Lot of Record. The two new lots must comply with the zoning regulations. Moreover, the 
Appeal at the top of Page 2 supports my decision by confirming that the property, if divided, will not 
meet all the rear lot requirements as the two lots will not have a “25-foot-wide fee simple access fronting 
on a…private street”.  
 
The Appeal references a court Stipulated Judgement which states in Paragraph 8, “All development work 
in the subdivision performed by Mr. Williams shall be done in accordance with the inland wetlands and 
zoning regulations of the Town of Ellington, and all applicable laws and regulations.” Again, the proposed 
two lots as shown on the Lot Split Survey do not comply with the zoning regulations therefore my 
decision should be wholly affirmed.  
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.   

 







































































































2023_10-02 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 1 of 3 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 2, 2023, 7:00 PM 
 

IN PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING  

(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 
 

PRESENT: Chairman Art Aube, Vice Chairman Sulakshana Thanvanthri, Regular members Ken 
Braga, Subhra Roy and Alternates Rodger Hosig and Ron Stomberg (arrived 7:13 pm) 

 
ABSENT:  Regular member Katherine Heminway and Alternate Ron Brown 

 
STAFF 
PRESENT: John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/Zoning Enforcement Officer, and Barbra 

Galovich, Recording Clerk 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Art Aube called the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting to 
order at 7:00 pm.  

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): None 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

  
1. V202310 – Beth Gottier, owner/ Bruce Gottier, applicant, request for variances of the 

Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3 – Minimum Yard Setback: to reduce the northern 
side yard setback from 10ft to 8ft, the southern side yard setback from 10ft to 9ft, and the 
front yard setback from 35ft to 9ft; and Section 3.2.4.2 – Maximum Lot Coverage: to increase 
lot coverage to from 25% to 27% to rebuild an existing home and add a one-car garage at 
14 Private Grounds 1, APN 148-062-0000 in a Lake Residential (LR) zone. 

 
Time:  7:01 pm    
Seated: Aube, Thanvanthri, Braga, Roy and Hosig  
 
Beth Gottier, 244 Windsorville Road and was present to represent the application. 
 
Beth Gottier stated she recently purchased the house and would like to rebuild the dwelling 
and add a one-car attached garage. Beth stated a couple of changes have been made to 
the site plan since the original submission. Beth provided the revised plans to the Board.  
Beth noted there will be a right of way easement on the property which has been moved on 
the revised plan dated October 2, 2023, by Gardner & Peterson Associates, LLC.   

  
Beth explained the overall lot is non-conforming and they are planning to rebuild the dwelling 
on the existing foundation. The northern boundary setback requirement is 10 feet and the 
proposed dwelling with the overhang will extend out to 8 feet. The southern side boundary 

  
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120        TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 
 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


2023_10-02 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 2 of 3 

setback currently is at 6.6 feet where the stairs are located, but the stairs will be removed 
with the new plan and the dwelling will be 9 feet from the southern property line.  
 
Beth showed the Board the front property line of the parcel, which is oddly shaped and does 
not curve with the existing road. Beth noted the front yard setback requirement is 35 feet 
and the proposed garage will be 26 feet from the existing road, although with the oddly 
shaped front property line the request is for a 10-foot front yard setback. 
 
Vice Chairman Thanvanthri asked Beth Gottier if the increase in lot coverage is still being 
requested. Beth noted they revised the plan and will be at 23% lot coverage, so they no 
longer are requesting a variance for a lot coverage increase. 
 
Chairman Aube asked if the house will be 38’ x 18’ plus the stairs and a new foundation for 
the garage, Beth agreed. John Colonese stated the project will need North Central District 
Health Department’s approval.  
    
MOVE (BRAGA), SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR V202310. 

 
MOVED (AUBE), SECONDED (BRAGA) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
W/CONDITION(S) V202310 – Beth Gottier, owner/ Bruce Gottier, applicant, request for 
variances of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3 – Minimum Yard Setback: to 
reduce the northern side yard setback from 10ft to 8ft, the southern side yard setback from 
10ft to 9ft, and the front yard setback from 35ft to 9ft to rebuild an existing home and add a 
one-car garage at 14 Private Grounds 1, APN 148-062-0000 in a Lake Residential (LR) 
zone. 
 
Condition(s):  
 
• Health Department approval shall be required prior to issuance of a zoning permit. 
 
Hardship:  Lot configuration 

 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of the September 11, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (THANVANTHRI) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE SEPTEMBER 11, 2023, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 

 
2. Correspondence/Discussion: 
 

a. FEMA draft data review notice to Town of Ellington dated September 27, 2023, in the 
Thames and Shetucket Watersheds. 
 
John Colonese stated he attended a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 
work map meeting on June 20, 2023, and worked with the town’s GIS consultant to 
overlay FEMA draft map data on an aerial view around Crystal Lake. The Thames and 
Shetucket Watershed in Ellington is generally east of Crystal Lake School. John 
completed a cursory review of the draft map, and some properties may now have a 
Special Flood Hazard Area designation. The information will be sent to the Town 
Engineer for review. John will update the Board with additional information from FEMA 
as it becomes available. 



2023_10-02 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 3 of 3 

 
3. Commissioner training pursuant to Public Act 21-29. 

 
This item was tabled to next month’s meeting. 

  
V. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (HOSIG) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADJOURN 
THE ZBA MEETING AT 7:28 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 



 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

DRAFT - 2024 MEETING SCHEDULE 
*All meetings are held in the Town Hall Annex at 7:00 PM* 

 
 

1/08 

2/05 

3/04 

4/01 

5/06 

6/03 

7/01 

8/05 

9/09 

10/07 

11/04 

12/02 
 

  

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
 

55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 
ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 

 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/

	MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2023, 7:00 PM
	2023_11-01 Exhibits 7-11 Maps.pdf
	Image_20231101_0001
	Image_20231101_0002
	Image_20231101_0003
	Image_20231101_0004
	Image_20231101_0005


